11(_)CKHILL Planning Commission Minutes

SOUTH CAROLINA February 1, 2022

A public hearing of the Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, February 1, 2022, at
6 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.

MEMBERS PRESENT Duane Christopher, Shelly Goodner, Randy Graham, Nathan
Mallard, Keith Martens, Gladys Robinson, Justin Smith

MEMBERS ABSENT None
STAFF PRESENT Dennis Fields, Eric Hawkins, Leah Youngblood

1. Approval of minutes of the December 7, 2021, meeting.

Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the minutes from the December
7, 2021, meeting. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

2. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2022-01 by Garden Street Communities Southeast, LLC (Greg Williams) to
rezone approximately 123.5 acres at 623 Neelys Creek Rd and three
unaddressed parcels south of Oak Pond Road from Rural Development District
(RUD) in York County to Single-family 4 (SF-4) and Design Overlay District
(DOD). Tax parcels 677-00-00-019, -026, -039, & -040.

Chairman Graham noted that this item has been withdrawn by the applicant and no
action was taken.

3. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2022-02 by Shea Homes Carolina, LLC (Hayden Frieslaar) to rezone
approximately 14.3 acres at 1064 and 1070 Belmar Lane, 2835 Bonnybrook
Circle and two unaddressed parcels from Residential Conservation District |
(RC-l) in York County and Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Single-Family 3
(SF-3). Tax parcels 635-07-01-076 & -077, 635-00-00-031, -041(portion), & -261.

Dennis Fields, Planner lll, presented the staff report.

Jordan Goare, Concord, NC (applicant), presented information about the applicant’s
company and the proposed development, noting that the look and feel would be
similar to that of Laurel Creek.

Ellen Buchanan, speaking on behalf of Constance Buchanan, 2716 Bonnybrook,
asked if there is a road connection to Arrowood Lane. Mr. Fields stated that there is
a sewer easement that extends from Arrowood Lane. Ms. Buchanan asked about
drainage from the development and noted that it may affect surrounding properties.
Mr. Fields noted that the developer will be required to account for storm drainage
during the civil construction plan review.

Paul Dildine, 1121 Melrose, wanted to confirm that there is no connection to Belmar.
He stated that the pond closest to the proposed development floods in the spring and
the pond above it has flooded over the road. If the pond was deemed conservation,

Page 1 of 3



Planning Commission Minutes February 1, 2022

it should always be conservation area. There are fish, birds, turtles, etc. and it is a
benefit to the community; we would like to see it stay as is. There is a drainage issue
in the area and the City needs to make sure the development doesn’t affect that. Mr.
Mallard clarified that the existing zoning is Residential Conservation District | and that
does not mean it's a natural conservation area.

Mr. Smith asked if the City will look at drainage from the pond that is outside the City.
Mr. Fields stated that they would have to account for any through-drainage with the
design of the development.

Shaun Bens, 1146 Melrose Drive, asked if other properties would be annexed. Mr.
Fields pointed out the areas that are proposed for annexation and noted that only the
property proposed for development would be annexed.

Mr. Smith made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning. Mr.
Christopher seconded.

Mr. Christopher noted that the stormwater would be handled during plan review and
noted that the preliminary plat would be reviewed by the Commission.

Chair Graham called for the vote and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-
0.

NEW BUSINESS

4. Consideration of a request by BGE Inc. (Andrew Grant) for Preliminary Plat
approval for Everly Ridge. (Plan #20190157).

Dennis Fields, Planner lll, presented the staff report and that both the applicant and
property owner have signed the letter acknowledging the required off-site road
improvements.

Mr. Christopher asked about the comments regarding removing lots 61 & 62. Mr.
Fields clarified that the comment is regarding the removal of the cul-de-sac near lots
61 & 62.

Mr. Christopher asked about the comment regarding stormwater easements
straddling property lines. Mr. Fields noted that staff does not normally like easements
to be on the lots because people end up building fences in them or putting structures
in them that interfere with drainage.

Mr. Mallard asked about the location of the three-way stop. Mr. Fields noted that it
will be at the Rawlsville Road/Neely Road intersection.

Mr. Christopher clarified that there will still be connections to adjoining properties, they
have just been shifted from the locations shown on the Master Plan. Mr. Fields stated
that is correct.

Vincent James, property owner, and Andrew Grant, project engineer, were available
for questions.

Commissioner Mallard made a motion to approve the Preliminary Plat subject to staff
comments. Commissioner Robinson seconded, and the motion passed unanimously
by a vote of 7-0.

5. Consideration of a request by Tidemark Land Services (Brock Hansen) and
Boxwood Builders for Preliminary Plat approval for a property at 1663 Oakdale
Road. (Plan #20211879).

Page 2 of 3



Planning Commission Minutes February 1, 2022

Dennis Fields, Planner Ill, presented the staff report.

Mr. Graham asked if each lot will have a driveway. Mr. Fields stated that he expects
they will but that will require SCDOT approval.

Mr. Christopher asked if the lots meet the minimum frontage requirements. Mr. Fields
stated that they do and they meet the minimum lot size.

Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the Preliminary Plat subject to
staff comments. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 7-0.

6. Consideration of a request by Timmons Group (Jake Esposito) for Major Site
Plan approval for Edgewood Place Apartments. (Plan #20201109).

Dennis Fields, Planner lll, presented the staff report.

Mr. Graham asked if there will be any access from Haynes Street. Mr. Fields stated
no, all access will be from Russell Street and America Street. He noted that there are
improvements planned for Russell Street because it is planned to be extended to
property to the south into the adjoining Colvin Park development. Improvements will
include repaving and widening.

Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the Major Site Plan subject to
staff comments. Commissioner Smith seconded, and the motion passed unanimously
by a vote of 7-0.

7. Consideration of a Food Truck for Hoppin’ Rock Hill at 110 Southern Street.
Mr. Smith recused on this item, citing a contractual relationship with the applicant.
Dennis Fields, Planner Ill, presented the staff report.

Mr. Martens asked if the building will be a brewery. Mr. Fields noted that the building
will be a bar use and this would provide somewhere for the patrons to get food.

Mr. Graham asked if this would be more of a concern if it were to be parked on the
street. Mr. Fields stated yes, that would be a concern.

Mr. Christopher asked if the area for the truck would be marked off so other vehicles
couldn’t park there. Mr. Fields stated that it would be.

Mr. Christopher asked if the food truck could only be there during the business’ hours.
Mr. Fields stated that is correct.

Commissioner Mallard made a motion to approve the request. Commissioner
Christopher seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.

8. Other Business.
a. Past Cases Update List.

Mr. Fields noted that the cases since the October meeting are on the list. Mr.
Christopher asked if the Laurel Creek property went to City Council. Mr. Fields
stated that it went to Council and failed for a lack of a motion and the applicant is
working on a plan for larger lots.

9. Adjourn.
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

Page 3 of 3



	Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 7, 2021, meeting. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.
	PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
	Chairman Graham noted that this item has been withdrawn by the applicant and no action was taken.
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Jordan Goare, Concord, NC (applicant), presented information about the applicant’s company and the proposed development, noting that the look and feel would be similar to that of Laurel Creek.
	Ellen Buchanan, speaking on behalf of Constance Buchanan, 2716 Bonnybrook, asked if there is a road connection to Arrowood Lane.  Mr. Fields stated that there is a sewer easement that extends from Arrowood Lane.  Ms. Buchanan asked about drainage from...
	Paul Dildine, 1121 Melrose, wanted to confirm that there is no connection to Belmar.  He stated that the pond closest to the proposed development floods in the spring and the pond above it has flooded over the road.  If the pond was deemed conservatio...
	Mr. Smith asked if the City will look at drainage from the pond that is outside the City.  Mr. Fields stated that they would have to account for any through-drainage with the design of the development.
	Shaun Bens, 1146 Melrose Drive, asked if other properties would be annexed.  Mr. Fields pointed out the areas that are proposed for annexation and noted that only the property proposed for development would be annexed.
	Mr. Smith made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Christopher seconded.
	Mr. Christopher noted that the stormwater would be handled during plan review and noted that the preliminary plat would be reviewed by the Commission.
	Chair Graham called for the vote and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.
	NEW BUSINESS
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report and that both the applicant and property owner have signed the letter acknowledging the required off-site road improvements.
	Mr. Christopher asked about the comments regarding removing lots 61 & 62.  Mr. Fields clarified that the comment is regarding the removal of the cul-de-sac near lots 61 & 62.
	Mr. Christopher asked about the comment regarding stormwater easements straddling property lines.  Mr. Fields noted that staff does not normally like easements to be on the lots because people end up building fences in them or putting structures in th...
	Mr. Mallard asked about the location of the three-way stop.  Mr. Fields noted that it will be at the Rawlsville Road/Neely Road intersection.
	Mr. Christopher clarified that there will still be connections to adjoining properties, they have just been shifted from the locations shown on the Master Plan.  Mr. Fields stated that is correct.
	Vincent James, property owner, and Andrew Grant, project engineer, were available for questions.
	Commissioner Mallard made a motion to approve the Preliminary Plat subject to staff comments. Commissioner Robinson seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Mr. Graham asked if each lot will have a driveway.  Mr. Fields stated that he expects they will but that will require SCDOT approval.
	Mr. Christopher asked if the lots meet the minimum frontage requirements.  Mr. Fields stated that they do and they meet the minimum lot size.
	Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the Preliminary Plat subject to staff comments. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Mr. Graham asked if there will be any access from Haynes Street.  Mr. Fields stated no, all access will be from Russell Street and America Street. He noted that there are improvements planned for Russell Street because it is planned to be extended to ...
	Commissioner Christopher made a motion to approve the Major Site Plan subject to staff comments. Commissioner Smith seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0.
	There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

